CS-SDG

Conference Declaration

Authors: Jörn Knobloch et al., Claudia Fabó Cartas

Document identifier

D2.1 Conference declaration

Version

2.1

Date Due

31.12.2020

Submission Date

29.12.2020; revised on 22.01.2021

Work Package

2

Lead Beneficiary

1 - MFN

Dissemination Level

Public



This project has received funding from the European Union's Horizon 2020 research and innovation programme under grant agreement No. 101000014.

Disclaimer

The information, documentation and figures in this deliverable are written by the CS-SDG project under EC grant agreement No. 101000014 and do not necessarily reflect the views of the European Commission. The European Commission is not liable for any use that may be made of the information contained herein.

<u>Acknowledgment</u>



This project has received funding from the European Union's Horizon 2020 research and innovation programme under grant agreement No. 101000014.

Reference

Please cite this work as:

CS-SDG Project, 2020. CS-SDG: D2.1 Conference Declaration, MfN, Berlin.

Copyright Notice

This work by the CS-SDG Project is licensed under a Creative Commons Attribute 4.0 International Licence.





Document Identification Sheet

Project Ref. No.	101000014	
Project acronym	CS-SDG	
Project Full Name	A citizen science decade (2020-2030) in support to the Sustainable Development Goals	
Document Name	CS-SDG_D2.1_3122020.pdf	
Security	Public	
Contractual Date of Delivery	Month 11, 31.12.2020	
Actual Date of Delivery	29.12.2020; revised on 22.01.2021	
Туре	Report	
Deliverable number	D2.1	
Deliverable name	Conference Declaration	
WP / Task	WP2	
Number of pages	22	
Authors	Jörn Knobloch (MfN), chief editor of the CS SDG Declaration and Claudia Fabó Cartas (MfN), editor of this deliverable.	
Authors	See the Declaration for the names of all authors and special contributors.	
Contributors	See the declaration for the names of all authors and special contributors.	
Review	Claudia Fabó Cartas (MfN), Jörn Knobloch (MfN), Silke Voigt- Heucke (MfN)	
Project Officer	Linden Farrer	
Abstract	A Declaration including policy recommendations resulted from the conference: "Our world – our goals: citizen science for the Sustainable Development Goals". The Declaration acts as a voluntary commitment by all partners to define the roles, competences and concrete potentials of Citizen Science to advance the SDGs. It was formulated in an open, bottom-up participatory process.	
Keywords	words Citizen Science, Conference, Sustainable Development Goa SDGs, Declaration, Policy recommendations, Bottom-up approach, Co-creation	



Table of contents

Version Log	5
Definitions and Acronyms	5
Executive summary	5
Background on the Declaration and follow-up	6
Our world – our goals: citizen science for the Sustainable Development Goals	9
Annex 1. Editors, authors and contributors	11
Editor	11
Special contributions (speakers, consultants, organisational support)	12
Annex 2. Endorsements and signatories	14
Institutional endorsers/signatories – 106 total	14
Individual endorsers/signatories – 180 total	17

Version Log

Version	Date	Released by	Nature of Change
1.0	23/12/2020	Claudia Fabó Cartas (MfN)	Final Review CS-SDG project team
2.0	18/01/2021 Claudia Fabó Cartas (MfN)		Amended deliverable
2.1	22/01/2021	Claudia Fabó Cartas (MfN)	Final revision by the CS-SDG project team

Definitions and Acronyms

CC	Creative Commons	
EC	European Commission	
FAIR	Findable, Accessible, Interoperable and Reusable	
GA	Grant Agreement	
MfN	Museum für Naturkunde Berlin	
Open Access	Access that is free to all and free of any restrictions	
SDGs	Sustainable Development Goals	
WP	Working Package	

Executive summary

The CS-SDG Conference Declaration is Deliverable 2.1 (D2.1), part of work package 2 "Policy and strategy" from project CS-SDG, grant agreement (GA) No. 101000014.

The aim of this deliverable is to introduce the Conference Declaration titled "Our world – our goals: citizen science for the Sustainable Development Goals" which was formulated in an open, bottom-up participatory process in preparation for and parallel to the CS SDG Conference "Knowledge for Change: A Decade of Citizen Science (2020-2030) in Support of the SDGs".

The Declaration includes a list with authors and special contributors as well as two annexes containing the names of individual and institutional endorsers/signatories. This deliverable also provides some background on the formulation process of the Declaration and on its follow-up.



Background on the Declaration and follow-up

Background

One of the aims of the CS SDG Conference "Knowledge for Change: A Decade of Citizen Science (2020-2030) in Support of the SDGs" was to formulate a Declaration including policy recommendations as a voluntary commitment by citizen scientists, academics and policy makers to define the roles, competences and concrete potentials of Citizen Science to advance the SDGs. The Declaration titled "Our world – our goals: citizen science for the Sustainable Development Goals" was formulated in an open, bottom-up participatory process involving the Citizen Science and SDG communities.

The CS-SDG project team wished for the Declaration to acknowledge the diverse structure of Citizen Science. We are convinced of the unique characteristics of Citizen Science as a complex enterprise, because its social and scientific function cannot be achieved in any other way. Only Citizen Science serves several logics and exercises simultaneously, since it mediates between science and society and fills a gap. The main aim of the Declaration is the communication of the complexity and reliability of Citizen Science transparent for all.

Transparency and openness were the themes of the co-creation process of the Declaration. Aspiring to bring together the Citizen Science and SDG communities, the CS-SDG project team organised a series of five virtual meetings called "Become an author of the Declaration" during the summer organised and moderated by Jörn Knobloch from the CS-SDG project team at the Museum für Naturkunde Berlin and hosted by ECSA (European Citizen Science Association).

Meetings were hold at midday (12:00-13:30 pm CET) in order to make participation from other time zones easier. Some virtual meetings included expert lectures that were held by Anne Kathrine Overgaard and Thomas Kaarsted, Alexander Gerber, and Dilek Fraisl. After the expert lectures and/or introduction by the moderator, participants were divided into groups to discuss and simultaneously work on already prepared documents online.

The titles and summarised contents of the five virtual meetings are:

1. Virtual meeting $1 - 1^{st}$ July 2020: "Scoping aims and potential impacts"

• Different options for a Conference Declaration were presented and discussed. Participants were able to actively contribute their ideas to the content of the Declaration.

2. Virtual meeting 2 – 12th August 2020: "Declaring the Declaration"

• The scope of the Declaration was at the centre of the discussion and collective answers to the following questions were found: What is the purpose of the Declaration? Who develops the Declaration? Who are the recipients of the Declaration? What are the goals of the Declaration?

3. Virtual meeting 3 – 26th August 2020: "In pursuit of a meaningful statement"

• We worked together on the precise formulation of our goals. Each working group focused on a different part of the Declaration. In a common creative



process, all participants contributed to the document with their specific perspective. A preliminary draft of the Declaration emerged from this meeting.

4. Virtual meeting $4 - 2^{nd}$ September 2020: "How can we implement our goals?"

• The practical implementation of the goals, on which we agreed on in previous discussion was at the heart of the debate. Different ways to implement the goals were discussed and formulated in concrete terms.

5. Virtual meeting 5 – 16th September 2020: "Discussion of the first draft"

• The preliminary draft of the Declaration was discussed at the final virtual meeting. The title of the Declaration – voted by the CS and SDG communities via an anonymous online survey since the previous virtual meeting – was communicated.

Endorsements

Between the 8th of October 2020 and the 5th of January 2021 (date of revision of this Deliverable), a total of **286** individuals and institutions/organisations/projects (thereof 180 individuals and 106 institutions/organisations) have signed the Declaration.

Follow-up

We plan three actions for the follow-up of the Declaration: First, the Declaration will be disseminated in the ECSA network. Through joint communication, as many Citizen Science projects as possible should become familiar with the Declaration and the idea of future Citizen Science projects orienting their work towards the Declaration will be promoted. Secondly, a brochure with the Declaration and its development process will be published and made openly accessible by the beneficiary of the action, the Museum für Naturkunde Berlin. The widespread distribution of this brochure should also contribute to the dissemination of the goals of the Declaration. Thirdly, intensive work is being done on the possibility of setting up the Declaration as a living document. This document should establish a Need for Action. Therefore, it is essential to connect the recommendations with practice via the formulation of areas of intervention. Based on the recommendations included in the Declaration, a range of potential action points targeting relevant stakeholders and relating to areas of intervention that call upon Need for Action should be collected and presented in the living document. The identified areas of intervention calling for action span across the main building blocks addressed by the SDGs, namely, societal, environmental, economic and governance, the latter including peace and justice, as follows:

- Bridge knowledge between policy needs, science requirements and Citizen Science activities;
- Raise awareness on benefits, allow for recognition of contribution, and instil trust in mutual relations;
- Promote quality and openness of data, agreed methodologies and assessment frameworks:
- Join forces through strategic alliances and complementarity of resources to achieve impact.



We are looking for a technical solution where the Declaration can be presented online with little effort so that interested people can assign their experiences and projects to the areas of intervention. Others should then be able to discover these examples for themselves, comment on them and add their own project ideas to the document. However, we are only at the beginning here, hence why we cannot exactly present an overview of the implementation of the living document yet.



Our world – our goals: citizen science for the Sustainable Development Goals

We, the authors, call on European institutions, EU member states and their research and innovation funding and performing organisations, private companies and civil society to make citizen science a key factor across all policies and activities relevant to the SDGs, including in shaping and implementing the European research agenda.

To achieve these, we make the following recommendations.

Recommendations

1. Harness the benefits of citizen science for the SDGs

- Through citizen science, citizens must be supported and encouraged to generate new scientific knowledge to support the SDGs, in collaboration with policy-makers, academia, research institutions, research funding agencies, researchers, citizens and civil society organisations and according to recognised and tested standards.
- Academia, universities and research institutes must be supported to restructure and open up to give space and opportunity for citizen involvement. Citizen science needs organisational forms to provide the approach with a route and framework and at the same time guarantee for quality.
- Policy makers and research funders should provide strategic and financial support
 to citizen science networks, capacity-building activities and initiatives, as well as to
 changes in research organisations, whilst also supporting the active engagement of
 EU citizens in implementing the SDGs.

2. Strengthen citizen science and its connections with other communities

 Citizen science networks and communities must interact more closely with thematic research communities that produce scientific knowledge and technological innovation for the different SDGs, such as R&I for the environment, health R&I, food R&I, energy and transport R&I. Policies should be put in place to encourage and support citizen science networks and communities of practice focused on



sustainability to enhance networking with diverse stakeholders (e.g. research organisations, non-governmental organisations, civil society organisations, policymakers and private companies), and help to align citizen science activities with policy and research needs.

- To promote and create synergies, systems should be established to increase the coordination and exchange of citizen science information and tools relevant to the SDGs, across countries and at the global level, and across thematic areas.
- To ensure and increase the usability and acceptance of citizen science data and evidence in efforts to achieve the SDGs, citizen science communities should communicate transparently on the methodologies they use, potential bias in the data they generate, and their data quality management strategies.
- Authorities across Europe should further promote, encourage and support the
 application of data-management and data-sharing principles (e.g. FAIR¹ and open
 data), and the release of technologies and tools that are open source and open
 access in citizen science initiatives, in order to ensure that citizen science data,
 technologies and tools are fit for science and policy purposes and, eventually, policy
 implementation.

3. Strengthen future citizen science systems

- Citizen science should be mainstreamed across the new Horizon Europe framework programme; this programme should also incorporate lessons from citizen science projects, and advice from citizen science experts, including on issues related to the European Green Deal.
- Curricula related to citizen science and the SDGs need to be developed for schools, higher education institutions and lifelong learning programmes, and adapted to different target groups. EU funding bodies should set up actions: support training and education institutes in incorporating citizen science; provide technical and legal support for citizen science practitioners; and reach out to local communities and schools.
- Funding for research into the science of citizen science is needed to advance the field, and how it can help achieve the SDGs and build expertise in a sustainable way.
- Funding for citizen science should allow for the special requirements of citizen science initiatives, including (among others) support for series of often small-scale experimentation, as well as for exploring different routes for the upscaling and long-term sustainability of initiatives aiming for social change.

¹ Findable, accessible, interoperable, reusable.



-

Annex 1. Editors, authors and contributors

Editor

Affiliation

Jörn Knobloch Museum für Naturkunde Berlin, Germany

Authors

Name		Affiliation
Rosa Fredrik Eglė Lucia	Arias Brounéus Butkevičienė Errandonea	Science for Change, Spain Vetenskap & Allmänhet, Sweden Kaunas University of Technology, Lithuania Ideas for Change, Spain
Claudia Raed	Fabó Cartas Fehri	Museum für Naturkunde Berlin, Germany Université catholique de Louvain, Earth and Life Institute, Belgium
Jörg	Freyhof	Museum für Naturkunde Berlin, Germany
Barbara	Heinisch	University of Vienna, Austria
Abril	Herrera Chávez	University College London, UK
Nikolia	Iliopoulou	Arsakeio Lyceum of Patras, Greece
Thomas	Kaarsted	Southern Denmark University Citizen Science Network, Denmark
Thorsten	Kluss	University of Bremen, Germany
Valerie	Knapp	Ruhr-Universität Bochum, Germany
Jörn	Knobloch	Museum für Naturkunde Berlin, Germany
Gitte	Kragh	Aarhus University; Citizen Science Netværket, Denmark
Renata	Kubus	CID-N Collective Intelligence Development Network, Spain
Martine	Legris	CERAPS, Université de Lille et CNRS, France
Julia	Lorke	Bürger schaffen Wissen, Wissenschaft im Dialog, Germany
Giovanni	Maccani	Ideas for Change, Spain
Marzia	Mazzonetto	Stickydot srl, Belgium
Jeremy	Millard	Danish Technological Institute, Denmark
Rosy	Mondardini	Citizen Science Center Zurich, Switzerland
Joanna	Morawska- Jancelewicz	Adam Mickiewicz University, Poland
Kim	Mortega	Museum für Naturkunde Berlin, Germany
Anne Kathrine	Overgaard	Southern Denmark University Citizen Science Network, Denmark
Maite	Pelacho	Ibercivis Foundation, Spain
Josep	Perelló	OpenSystems, Universitat de Barcelona
Shyam S.	Phartyal	School of Ecology and Environment Studies, Nalanda University, India



Baiba	Prūse	Ca' Foscari University of Venice, Italy; University
		of Latvia, Latvia
Antonella	Radicchi	Museum für Naturkunde Berlin and Technical University of Berlin, Germany
Claire	Ramjan	University of Stirling, UK
Dorte	Riemenschneider	European Citizen Science Association, Germany
Nora	Salas Seoane	Science for Change, Spain
Francisco	Sanz	Ibercivis Foundation, Spain
Francesca	Spagnuolo	European Gravitational Observatory, Italy
Norbert	Steinhaus	Wissenschafstladen Bonn, Germany
Monika	Suškevičs	Estonian University of Life Sciences, Estonia
Jakub	Trojan	Tomas Bata University in Zlin, Czech Republic
Vanessa	van den Bogaert	Ruhr-Universität Bochum, Germany
Silke	Voigt-Heucke	Museum für Naturkunde Berlin, Germany
Katherin	Wagenknecht	Technische Hochschule Wildau, Innovation
		Hub, Germany
Maike	Weisspflug	Museum für Naturkunde Berlin, Germany
Tim	Woods	European Citizen Science Association, Germany
Katerina	Zourou	Web2Learn and Hellenic Open University,
		Greece

Special contributions (speakers, consultants, organisational support)

Name		Affiliation
Cissi	Askwall	Vetenskap & Allmänhet, VA (Public & Science), Sweden
Egle	Butkeviciene	Kaunas University of Technology, Lithuania
Julia	Diekämper	Museum für Naturkunde Berlin, Germany
Claudia	Fabó Cartas	Museum für Naturkunde Berlin, Germany
Dilek	Fraisl	International Institute of Applied Systems
		Analysis, Austria
Steffen	Fritz	International Institute of Applied Systems
		Analysis, Austria
Alexander	Gerber	Rhine-Waal University, Germany
Muki	Haklay	University College London (UCL), Great Brittain
Susanne	Hecker	Museum für Naturkunde Berlin, Germany
Jens	Jetzkowitz	Museum für Naturkunde Berlin, Germany
Thomas	Kaarsted	Southern Denmark University Citizen Science
		Network, Denmark
Alina	Loth	Museum für Naturkunde Berlin, Germany
Marina	Manzoni	Joint Research Centre of the European
		Commission, Italy
Jeremy	Millard	Danish Technological Institute, Denmark
Kim	Mortega	Museum für Naturkunde Berlin, Germany
Anne Kathrine	Overgaard	Southern Denmark University Citizen Science Network, Denmark



Antonella	Radicchi	Museum für Naturkunde Berlin and Technical
		University of Berlin, Germany
Anett	Richter	Thuenen Institut, Germany
Dorte	Riemenschneider	European Citizen Science Association, Germany
Wiebke	Rössig	Museum für Naturkunde Berlin, Germany
Sven	Schade	Joint Research Centre of the European
		Commission, Italy
Ulrike	Sturm	Museum für Naturkunde Berlin, Germany
Valantis	Tsiakos	Institute of Communication and Computer
		Systems / WeObserve
Katrin	Vohland	Naturhistorisches Museum Wien, Austria
Silke	Voigt-Heucke	Museum für Naturkunde Berlin, Germany
Katherin	Wagenknecht	Technische Hochschule Wildau, Innovation Hub,
		Germany
Maike	Weisspflug	Museum für Naturkunde Berlin, Germany
Tim	Woods	European Citizen Science Association, Germany

Annex 2. Endorsements and signatories

(Last updated on 05.01.21)

Institutional endorsers/signatories – 106 total

Adam Mickiewicz University, Faculty of Human Geography Paweł Churski

and Planning

AG Citizen Science am Thünen Insititut für Biodiversität

Alhaya International Academy

ars electronica research institute 'knowledge for humanity'

Arsakeio Lyceum of Patras, Greece

ATIT

Ayam Sailing Europe aisbl

Bürger schaffen Wissen - German Citizen Science Platform Dr Susanne Hecker

Butterfly Conservation Europe

Centre for Research in Anthropology (CRIA)

Center for the Promotion of Science

Chair, International Consortium of Researcher Staff

Associations (ICORSA)

CID-N Collective Intelligence Development Network

Citizen Science Center Zurich

Citizen Science Netværket

Citizen Science Network Austria, University of Natural

Resources and Life Sciences Vienna, Austria

CTK Central Technical Library at the University of

Ljubljana

Culture Instable Ltd

Danish Technological Institute & Third Millennium

Governance

DorfwerkStadt e.V.

Earthwatch

Ecotec Ingeniería Ltda.

EnviroCitizen H2020 project, University of Stavanger,

Norway

ESSRG

European Citizen Science Association (ECSA)

European Science Communication Institute

Facts & Files

Faculty of Philosophy, University of Novi Sad, Center for

Behavioral Genetics

Forschungsinstitut für Bergbaufolgelandschaften e.V.

Dr Anett Richter

Osama Abu-Libda

Eveline Wandl-Vogt Nikolia Iliopoulou

Sally Reynolds

Kamel Labibes

Cristina Gonzalez

Sevilleja

Marko Krstić

Ana Carrapato

Dr Rosarii Griffin

Renata Kubus

Maria Rosa Mondardini

Gitte Kragh

Daniel Dörler, Florian

Heigl

Mitja V. Iskrić

Didier Laval

Jeremy Millard

Rainer Leppin

Luigi Ceccaroni,

Macarena Cardenas

Gerhard Schleenstein

Finn Arne Jørgensen

Bálint Balázs, Alexandra

Czegledi

Dorte Riemenschneider

Regina Schwald

Frank Drauschke

Christoph Ertle



Fundación Ibercivis Francisco Sanz

Global Young Academy - Working Group Citizen Science for Robert Lepenies, Ibrahim

the 2030 SDG Agenda Sidi Zakari Görgen und Köller GmbH Josef Pinter

H2020 TeRRIFICA project (Territorial RRI fostering Marta Cayetano i Giralt

innovative climate action)

Hush City Project

INSIde, International Network for Sustainable Ideas

Antonella Radicchi
Chiara Cardelli

Institute of Anthropology Bucharest Stefan Dorondel

International Institute for Applied Systems Analysis Steffen Fritz, PhD, Gerid

Hager

Karama Praxis/ Institut für Wissenschaft und Wandel Dr Andrea Kronenthaler

KempleyGreen Consultants Martin Brocklehurst

KMGNE Kolleg für Management und Gestaltung Joachim Borner

nachhaltiger Entwicklung

Kognitive Neuroinformatics, University of Bremen Thorsten Kluss
KOYS Lab Francesco Niglia
Lecturers Without Borders NGO Athanasia Nikolaou

Leibniz Institute for Zoo and Wildlife Research Miriam Brandt, Sarah

Kiefer

Living Knowledge - the International Science Shop Network Norbert Steinhaus

Mapping for Change Hannah Stockwell
Maremma Natural History Museum Andrea Sforzi

Mbarara University of Science and Technology, Uganda Dr Casim Umba Tolo Mediterranean Information Office for Environment, Culture Anastasia Roniotes

and Sustainable Development (MIO-ECSDE)

Mountains of the Moon University

John Sekajugo

Museo del Hongo

Juan Ferrer

Museum für Naturkunde Berlin

Muséum national d'Histoire naturelle
National Biodiversity Data Centre, Ireland
Naturhistorisches Museum Wien
NILU-Norwegian Institute for Air Research
Nnamdi Azikiwe University
Norwegian Meteorological Institute

Bruno David
Dave Wall
Katrin Vohland
Nuria Castell
Akaninyene Obot
Ole Jakob Hegelund

ORION Open Science Project - Centre for Genomic Michela Bertero

Regulation

Plan4all Karel Charvat

Plataforma de Ciência Aberta - Municipality of Figueira de Maria Inês Alves Vicente

Castelo Rodrigo, Portugal

Project "Bridging in Biodiversity Science" (BIBS)

Sarah Kiefer

Project SensJus - The Tilburg Institute for Law, Technology Anna Berti Suman

and Society



Nicola Moczek

PSY:PLAN Institute for Architectural and Environmental

Psychology

RCE Belarus (Regional Center for Expertise on ESD)

Research Group Ciberimaginario - University Rey Juan

Carlos

Royal Museum for Central Africa

Sa citizen science group

Science for Change

Tine Huyse

Kate Sposab

Manuel Gertrudix

Sovan Acharya

Silvina Frucella, Karinna

Science Shop Tuebingen, Germany

ScienceAtHome, Aarhus University ScienceDialogue.de

ScienceSquad Africa Foundation

SDG & Citizen Science Maximisation Group

Sissa Medialab

Source International

SPOTTERON Citizen Science

Stickydot srl

Thalassa - Marine Research and Science Communication

The Loka Institute

The Steinhardt Museum of Natural History, Tel Aviv

University

Therapy Box Tlalogue Cintia Duran Tomas Bata University in Zlin

Trackers and Stewards Association

Under and Tuglas Literature Centre of the Estonian

Academy of Sciences

United Nations University - Institute for Integrated

Management of Material Fluxes and of Resources (UNU-

FLORES)

Universidad Politécnica de Madrid Universidad Pública de Navarra Esther M Gonzalez Université Libre de Bruxelles Charline Urbain

Université Libre de Bruxelles - Département Inforsciences

University College Cork - Civic and Community Engagement Dr Martin Galvin

Officer

University of Applied Sciences Hof

University of Jyväskylä

University of Natural Resources and Life Sciences, Vienna

University of Reading

Rosa Arias, Nora Salas

Seoane, Mar Escarrabill, Matozinhos de Faria,

Diana Reinoso

Dr Thomas von Schell

Jacob Friis Sherson

S. Siebert Edwin Obaje

Libby Hepburn Enrico Maria Balli Flaviano Bianchini Philipp Hummer

Stickydot srl Tosca Ballerini Richard Sclove

Tamar Dayan

Rebecca Bright

Jakub Trojan

Christopher William Tripp FIIe-Mari Talivee

Raquel Cedazo León

Jérôme De Schauwers

Jörg Scheidt Petteri Laihonen Christian Obinger

Nerea Ferrando Jorge



University of Southern Denmark Thomas Kaarsted, Anne

Kathrine Overgaard

Markus Weißkopf

University of Turin Simona Bonelli

University of Zaragoza, School of Design and Education Francisco Javier Serón

Faculty Torrecilla

University Pompeu Fabra - Studies Centre on Science, Luisa Barbosa Gomez

Communication and Society

VA (Public & Science) Cissi Askwall WaterLab Marit Bogert

WEXICOM -- Hans-Ertel-Centre for Weather Research Henning Rust

Wissenschaft im Dialog gGmbH

Xinjiang Institute of Ecology and Geography, Chinese Alishir Kurban

Academy of Sciences

ZSI - Centre for Social Innovation Klaus Schuch

Individual endorsers/signatories – 180 total

Adnađević Tanja Centre for the promotion of science

Alonso Roldán María Mapping for Change CIC University of Exeter Lindsey Anderson Arif University of Kassel Ishtiag

Mercy Gloria Ashepet Royal Museum for Central Africa, Tervuren

Belgium

Giulia Barbero Vignola Joint Research Centre - European Commission Luca Bartolozzi

Natural History Museum, University of Firenze,

italy

Lucy Bastin Aston University, UK

Institut de Ciència i Tecnologia Ambientals - UAB Petra Benvei

Carlo Andrea Biraghi Politecnico di Milano Lars **Bodum Aalborg University**

Helmholtz-Centre for Environmental Research – Aletta Bonn

> UFZ | University Jenal German Centre for Integrative Biodiversity Research (iDiv)

Rémy Bossu European-Mediterranean Seismological Center

Elisabetta Center for Genomic Regulation **Broglio** Butkeviciene Kaunas University of Technology Egle

Alessandro Campanaro CREA

Carlos Institute for climate change and sustainable Cañas

development, University of Malta

Barbara Carneiro European Citizen Science Association (ECSA) Marta Cayetano i Giralt Global University Network for innovation (GUNi)

Emmanuel Chaniotakis Ellinogermaniki Agogi



Frédérique Chlous Muséum national d'Histoire naturelle

Andy Cobley University of Dundee

Jasmin Colakoglu

Christina Cooper University of Southern Denmark (SDU)

Melanie

Oscar Corcho Universidad Politécnica de Madrid Elke Dall Zentrum für Soziale Innovation Sarah Darwin Museum für Naturkunde Berlin

Antonia Davidovic- Heidelberg University

Walther

Isabelle Dechamps

Reuma De-Groot MOFET institute

Marie Delannoy Muséum national d'Histoire naturelle

Julia Diekämper Museum für Naturkunde Berlin

Jenna Dodson

Raul Drachman Mofet Institute, CS Track project coordinator

Ria Dunkley University of Glasgow

Claudia Fabó Cartas Museum für Naturkunde Berlin

Laure Fallou Euro-Mediterranean Seismic Centre (EMSC)
Sérgio Ferreira Cardoso Institut des Sciences de l'évolution - Montpellier

Piaalycia Fischlein

Falko Fleßner Museum für Naturkunde Berlin

Dilek Fraisl

Jörg Freyhof Museum für Naturkunde Berlin

Fleur Froeling Universiteit Utrecht

Nicola Gabriel Institut für Hochschulforschung Halle-Wittenberg

Jorge Pedro Galve Arnedo Universidad de Granada Flemming Gammelgaard VIA University College

Binderup

Prof. Alexander Gerber HSRW / INSCICO
Chiara Gerosa Politecnico di Milano

Eugenio Gervasini Joint Research Centre - European Commission

Nesar Ghadernezhad

Mohammad Gharesifard IHE Delft Institute for Water Education

Florence Gignac ISGlobal

Martin Göber Deutscher Wetterdienst

Margaret Gold ECSA

Yaela Golumbic The University of Sydney

Sonja Grossberndt

Angela Grosse Science Communication
Blanca Guasch Science for Change
Sridhar Open Access India

Muki Haklay UCL



Dean Hart Canine Studies College

Dr Christoph Häuser Museum für Naturkunde Berlin
Dr Susanne Hecker Museum für Naturkunde Berlin

Barbara Heinisch Universität Wien

Gesine Heinrich Museum für Naturkunde Berlin

Abril Herrera Chavez UCL

Josef Hochgerner ESSI, European School of Social Innovation

Hannah Hoff

Anna Hupe University of Southern Denmark

Justine Jacquemin Royal Belgian Institute of Natural Sciences

Manuel Jänig

Annelli Janssen DRIFT

Thomas Jekel

Jens Jetzkowitz Biodiversity Policy Lab, Museum für Naturkunde

Berlin

Dolly Jørgensen University of Stavanger

Núria Jové ACUP

Judit Juhász University of Szeged Faculty of Economics

Romain Julliard Muséum national d'Histoire naturelle

Dr Stefan Kamlage

Susan Karlebowski Museum für Naturkunde

Ruth Kastner

Julia Kaufmann Humboldt Universität zu Berlin

Niharika Kaul PRIA

Barbara Kieslinger Zentrum für Soziale Innovation GmbH

Tim Kiessling Leibniz Institute for Science and Mathematics

Education

Carmen Kilvits Estonian University of Life Sciences

Mirjam Knörnschild MfN Berlin

Stephanie Köhnk Center of Natural History Hamburg

Dr Hannes J. König Leibniz Centre for Agricultural Landscape

Research (ZALF)

Monika Koop University of Muenster
Daniel Krüger TU Dortmund University

Tej Kumar Nepal Nalanda University
Ann Elisabeth Laksfoss Cardozo University of Stavanger

Dobrivoje Lale Eric Center for the Promotion of Science

Martine Legris Lille University, CERAPS

Patrick Lehner Ludwig Boltzmann Gesellschaft, Open Innovation

in Science Center

Oberdan Leo Université Libre de Bruxelle Robert Lepenies Global Young Academy & UFZ

Agostino Letardi ENEA



Montgomery Lord St Joseph's RC High School, Horwich, England

Martina Lutz Museum für Naturkunde Berlin

Giovanni Maccani Ideas for Change

Miguel Madrid Water & Soil Pollution Consultant Sven Manske University of Duisburg-Essen

Olivier Markowitch Université Libre de Bruxelles (ULB)

Marco Marsili CIEP-UCP, CEI-IUL, CINAMIL, CIDIUM

Aleksandrs Mārtinš Blūms Ministry of Education and Science of the

Republic of Latvia

Maria Elsa Matoso Particular interest

Alexandre da

Fonseca

Elsa Matthus

Thomas Hervé Mboa Nkoudou

Raquel Mendes

Eva Méndez Universidad Carlos III de Madrid

Janet Molina Maturano Ghent University

Alexandra Moormann Museum für Naturkunde Berlin

Inian Moorthy International Institute for Applied Systems

Analysis

Joanna Morawska- Adam Mickiewicz University, Poznań

Jancelewicz

Marcos Moreu University College London
Kim Mortega Museum für Naturkunde Berlin

Henk Mulder University of Groningen

Frank Müller SAP

Shuvojit Nath TU Dresden

Alexandros Nikolaou Centre for Genomic Regulation (CRG)

Nthabiseng Nooe University of Southern Denmark Giovanna Pacini Università degli Studi di Firenze

Shyam S. Phartyal Nalanda University, India Marisa Ponti University of Gothenburg

Matthias Premke-Kraus Leibniz Association

Baiba Prūse

Turam Purty Sarjom I CitSci Earth Claire Ramjan University of Stirling Giovanna Ranci Ortigosa scienza collaborativa

Inga Reich Sabine Rieder

Julia Rostin Museum für Naturkunde Berlin

Simone Rüfenacht ECSA

Margarida Sardo UWE Bristol Alessandro Sarretta CNR-IRPI



Henry Sauermann ESMT Berlin

Teresa Schaefer ZSI - Centre for Social Innovation

David Scheller University of Applied Sciences Potsdam

Dr Boris Schröder- Institute of Geoecology, Technische Universität

Esselbach Braunschweig

Sibylle Schroer Leibniz-Institut für Gewässerökologie und

Binnenfischerei

Philipp Schrögel Karlsruhe Institute of Technology (KIT)

Daniela Schwarz University of Kassel

Veronica Semeco

Fermin Serrano Gobierno de Aragón

Julie Koch Sheard Center for Macroecology, Evolution and Climate,

GLOBE Institute, Copenhagen University

Kristiina Skinnari University of Jyväskylä, Finland Karen Soacha Instituto de Ciencias del Mar ICM

Cassio Sozinho Amorim

James Sprinks Earthwatch

Jóhann Helgi Stefánsson The Soil Conservation Service of Iceland

Norbert Steinhaus Wissenschaftsladen Bonn - Bonn Science Shop

Sharon Stewart Journal of Sonic Studies

Ulrike Sturm Museum für Naturkunde Berlin

Tamás Péter Szabó University of Jyväskylä

Prof. Dr Stefan Thomas University of Applied Science Potsdam

Rachit Tiwari Nalanda University

Susanne Tönsmann Participatory Science Academy, Citizen Science

Center at the University of Zurich and ETH Zurich

Anders P. Tøttrup Natural History Museum of Denmark

Andrea Troncoso Consultant

Susann Ullrich University of Potsdam Vanessa van den Bogaert Ruhr-Universität Bochum

Andrea Vargiu Università degli Studi di Sassari

Jorge Velasco-Gonzalez Spanish National Research Council (CSIC)

Ana Vidu University of Deusto

Eugenia Vilarchao European Science Foundation Silke Voigt-Heucke Museum für Naturkunde Berlin

Julia von Gönner UFZ/iDiv

Katherin Wagenknecht Technische Hochschule Wildau Dave Wall National Biodiversity Data Centre

Sabine Webner

Uta Wehn IHE Delft Institute of Water Education

Markus Weißkopf Wissenschaft im Dialog

Maike Weisspflug Museum für Naturkunde Berlin

Marie Wenzel



Danielle Wilde University of Southern Denmark

Tim Woods ECSA Yaqian Wu UCL

Daniel Wuebben University of Rey Juan Carlos

